
THE NEVER ENDING SAGA

By Sam Fairall-Lee & Paul Bucknall
Chapter One: The Turnip


“Commander?!”


“What is it Jonesy?” responded Jack.


“Something’s up Commander!” yelled Jonesy.


Jack walked out from behind fire control and onto the starboard bridge wing where Seaman Jones was standing, binoculars in hand. Jonesy pointed a straight arm out 45 degrees aft.


Jack looked down the line of his pointing arm. “What the devil?” he remarked. Bubbles were rising and popping on the surface about 800 metres away.


Suddenly the ship began to rise and fall and warp.


“Increase to flank!” yelled Jack back into the bridge. But it was too late, and the explosion ripped through the ship, tearing it in half.


“Jonesy watch out, it’s a flying turnip!” said Commander.


The turnip continued, as if undistracted by the sinking cruiser nearby.


Two hours later, the turnip had reached the last line of defence, about 100kms off the coast. A fleet had been assembled as the last hope of defeating the turnip before it reached land. The turnip came into view of the fleet, overpowering as it came over the horizon. The Admiral gave the order: “Engage!”


Now, at this critical moment, Jean-Luc Picard of the starship Enterprise, materialised on the bridge. “Number two!” he cried, absent-minded due to his laxative induced trauma, “I need to drop a number two!” Jean-Luc cried.


Jonesy, who was terrified beyond belief, decided now was the time to reveal he was in fact a Turnopian double agent. “I’m a Turnopian double agent,” Jonesy said.


“Good God!” Jean-Luc declared.


“Yes, I am God!” the commander replied.


All the while the turnip was moving at an incredible speed, growing as it headed towards land.


“Don’t panic, use the force Jonesy,” Jean-Luc mumbled.


“Wrong movie spin-off! I just can’t do it Captain!” Jonesy replied.


“Live long and prosper!” the commander screamed as he tore out his few remaining hairs.


Jean-Luc couldn’t be arsed with all of this tomfoolery and subsequently exploded.


“I can’t make sense of this!” Jonesy said in utter bewilderment.


The turnip continued relentlessly.


The Admiral then turned to his secret weapon, a surface-to-air missile equipped with a nuclear warhead. “Fire!” he ordered. The missile shot out of its launcher and impacted against the turnip.


This clearly disturbed Archibald, for that was the name of the turnip. Archibald felt the pain, grimaced and started to cry.


“Oh no! What have we done!” groaned Jonesy.


“It was my duty!” stated the commander.


“I can’t handle the guilt! I must die!” screamed Jonesy.


“Noooooooo!” bellowed the commander.


Jonesy, wracked with guilt, attached himself to a torpedo and fired himself into a nearby whale.


The whale began to cry.


“Jonesy, you malicious fucker!!!” the commander shouted. “You hurt the whale!”


While all of this was occurring the turnip had morphed into a flying, nuclear powered, metal budgie. The budgie was armed with a wooden spoon. “Meow” screeched the budgie.


“Bloody hell! There’s something you don’t see everyday!” whispered the commander.


Then, the Admiral’s re-enforcement’s came over the horizon, the Americans had arrived!


The budgie meowed again... “Meow.”


The Americans pissed themselves and went away to watch Jerry Springer on Fox.


“Meow,” said budgie.


“Fuck me, I’m joining Jean-Luc!” said the commander before exploding with such force that the universe was annihilated.


The only matter left in the space of the now destroyed universe was the budgie who subsequently morphed back into a turnip.


“I am turnip, hear me roar!” said Archibald with great gusto...


And so ended the whole of human existence.


In another universe, John Farnham was fishing in a small row-boat on a lake...

Chapter Two: John Farnham, A Life Of Much Achievement


The universe is a strange place. Stranger still when a man named John Farnham exists.


John Farnham is an ageing, past hit crooning, wrinkled faced singer by day, while at night he’s a crack dealing pimp called ‘Big John’.


‘Big John’ supplies thousands of hungry junkies each and every night. “Mother John” they call him. When he gives out his nightly crack supplies he also charges low rate, affordable prices for cheap, craggy-faced whores. ‘Big John’ is seen as a saviour to millions.


One day as John was sailing down the Nile, fishing for cheap African labour whom he needed to make the literally dozens of albums he sold, he had a bright, yet very dull, idea.


“I shall open my own English Muffin factory!” he said to himself, with great spontaneity.


Now, as he thought of his devious plan, old Johnny (who was only ‘50 years young’) developed what can only be described as a ‘growth’ on the side of his head.


Yes! It was Kerri-Anne Kennerley!


“Ha, ha! Kerri-Anne!” John called, “You have decided to join me in my English Muffin enterprise!”


“I have,” declared Kerri-Anne with little intelligence and great spite.


Young/old big/little ‘John’ now had an evil glint in his eye, “We have it all Kerri-Anne! Money, looks, talent... yet there is one market we must still crack... The English Muffin business!” and with that, John burst into a series of cackles that lasted many months, adding to his few wrinkles.


“Yes John. Let us go forth and dominate,” replied Kerri-Anne with little thought and great kinkiness.


And so, as the minutes passed, John and Dominatrix (as Kerri-Anne now liked to be called) established a multiconglomerate, worlddominating chain of English Muffin factories. Which, alongside John’s chain of neatly decorated brothels, had cornered the global market for Muffin based sexual pleasure.


As John sang “Everytime You Cry” (Australian top five, 1998 Kids!) Dominatrix plucked her eyelashes.


“John, ye song rejoicing is playing on thy nerves,” said Ye Olde Wench (as Dominatrix was now known).


“Ye Olde Wench, perhaps now is the time that we should take over the world,” sang John.


“Thou d’ost speake the...” began Ye Olde Wench.


At this critical juncture, Jean-Luc Picard imploded into the scene. “I am Jean-Luc Picard of the starship ‘Dull Sci-fi sitcom,’” bellowed Jean-Luc.


“I am Lord Johnny Farnham of the multiconglomerates, ‘fuck-em-up the arse Ltd.’ and ‘Ye olde English Pastries and Breads inc.’” replied John.


“John, O’lord, I come to you in great praise to ask of you... Will you marry me?” said Jean-Luc.


While John was surprised by this sudden turn of events, he couldn’t refuse such an enticing offer. “Oh Jean-Luc, of course!” replied John.


So... With great fanfare, they were married. They went on to take over the universe while Stupid Bitch (as Ye Olde Wench was now known as) became a world-famous horticulturist, while still attached to John’s head, no mean feat!


“Fuck-up-muffin music” as Jean-Luc’s and John’s company came to be known, has posted end of year profits of 2c, while in an alternate universe...


Just as Ray Martin was re-combing his wig... a group of over zealous reggae fans stormed his compound in Walt Disney World, Florida.

Chapter Three: Ray Martin “Australia’s Friend”


Ray Martin was sitting comfortably in a large chair, combing his wig, while watching ‘A Current Affair with Mike Munro’. “I’ll get you yet Munro!” mumbled Ray Martin, with a grimacing expression. Ray Martin glanced over to the wall, where sat his collection of Mike Munro memorabilia, or, as Ray Martin liked to call it, ‘The Shrine’ and smiled. Each and every Mike Munro picture was accompanied by a new and interesting method of terminating human life.


Ray Martin’s favourite picture was one of Mike Munro standing with the Pope, “I never met the fucking Pope!” mumbled Ray Martin. Smeared in chicken blood (for he had none of Mike Munro’s, and chickens were relatively cheap) were the words Insert hypodermic syringe into Mike Munro’s right eyeball; inject nitro-glycerine into Mike Munro’s right eyeball; watch as Mike Munro’s eye explodes; insert cricket bat (for Ray Martin was a big cricket fan) into Mike Munro’s rear orifice; play cricket. Ray Martin often thought about inserting a cricket bat up the backside of Mike Munro and hitting a six.


Ray Martin lay back, dreaming of being back in the chair, of being back on “A Current Affair”, he began to mumble involuntarily, “Welcome back..., welcome back..., welcome back to A Current Affair. Yes, my guests tonight..., welcome back...,”


Suddenly, Bob Marley smashed open the door and entered Ray Martin World (as it was now called). Bob Marley looked around then ran quickly into the next room and slammed the door.


As Ray Martin considered how a long dead Caribbean music luminary could penetrate the defences of Ray Martin World (which were quite extensive and featured, among other things, nuclear weapons) a group of over zealous reggae fans came storming into the room. “Hey man, where’s Bob Marley man?” they said.


Ray Martin picked up the ‘red phone’ and proclaimed “Code nine, code nine! Intruder in the shrine room!”


Just then, Mike Munro, still on the television, said “And once again, if anyone knows the whereabouts of Ray Martin, please contact your nearest police station.”


The overpowering force of hearing his own name on television sent Ray Martin into a reminiscent breakdown. He began to twitch and stutter and his voice went from loud to soft, high to low, “Welcome back, I’m Ray Martin, I’m Ray Martin, I’m Ray Mar...”.


At this point, the crack troops of the Ray Martin 67th Special Forces Regiment “The Martins” dropped from the roof, each had a patch on his shoulder with a picture of a smiling Ray Martin, and the words Ray Martin. They landed on the floor and began waiving their submachineguns.


At this critical moment, Captain Jean-Luc Picard of the starship Death Star imploded into the scene. He took one look at the zealous raggae fans now dodging submachinegun fire; one look at the blood smeared death orders hanging from the wall; one look at the commandos running around, screaming orders and discharging their guns; one look at the crazed ex-television host in the corner twitching and stuttering and talking to himself; shrugged; then promptly exploded out of the scene.


“I’m Ray Martin, I’m Ray Martin, I’m Ray Mar...,” continued Ray Martin.


Suddenly, John Farnham imploded into the scene. “Anyone seen Jean-Luc?” he asked, “slim guy, bald head, silly red suit.” He asked Ray Martin, “Haven’t seen Captain Picard have you mate?”


“I’m Ray Martin, I’m Ray Martin...,” said Ray Martin.


“I’m Johnny Farnham, I’m Johnny Farnham,” said John Farnham.


“I’m Ray Martin, I’m John Farnham, I’m Ray Martin, I’m John Farnham, I’m Jay Fartin, I’m Rohn Marnham, I’m Jay Fartin,” said Ray Martin.


“Yeah, good on you mate!” said John Farnham. He turned to the zealous raggae fans, still attempting to avoid the commandos, “Seen the captain have ya?”


“Ahhhhhhh...,” said a reggae fan as he ran passed John Farnham, pursued by a screaming commando.


“No then. What about you guys?” he asked the commandos.


“AGGGGGGGGGGHHHHHHHHHHHH,” screamed the commandos.


John Farnham shrugged, then swiftly exploded out of the scene.


“I’m Jay Fartin, I’m Jay Fartin,” continued Ray Martin.


At this juncture, Kerri-Anne Kennerley exploded into the scene. “Has anyone scene that bastard John Farn...!” just then she noticed Ray Martin sitting in his chair. “Ray?” she inquired. “Everyone’s looking for you, where the hell have you been?”


“I’m Jay Fartin, I’m Jay Fartin...,” he continued.


“Ray, they sacked us both, let’s join forces and destroy Channel Nine!” said Kerri-Anne Kennerley.


Upon hearing the words ‘channel nine’ his expression changed. He became facially distorted, his eyes went blood red, and he started to dribble. “I’m Jay Fartin, kill channel nine! I’m Jay Fartin, kill channel nine!”


“Come on then, let’s go,” said Kerri-Anne, pulling Ray Martin out of his chair and dragging him up. They then swiftly exploded out of the scene. Leaving the surviving reggae fans running around the room, still pursued by the commandos.


Meanwhile, in another universe, Daryl Somers sat down for a drink with Boris Yeltsin....

Chapter Four: The Darylist Manifesto


Descending through the clouds over Moscow, you are struck by the magnificent architecture originating from hundreds of years of Tsarist rule. You notice the dull architecture originating from decades of communist rule. You are amazed by the huge gong, 300 metres in diameter, that hangs over the Kremlin. Genuine architecture from the 8 years of Somers rule.


Daryl Somers, arch nemesis of Socialism, instigated the downfall of communism in Eastern Europe 10 years ago, last Tuesday. Somers, who saw a gap in the market, introduced comedy-starved Romanians to a comedy classic, ‘The Very Best of Red Faces, Vol. XXVII’. The hilarity of the video was so great, that within hours the whole of Eastern Europe had succumb to Red Symons’ unique brand of ‘game show’ style humour. The U.S.S.R. was next.


After minutes of conflict, the 9th Somers army had captured the last Russian stronghold, ‘Vladimir’s Vodka Emporium’. As the 25th Plucka squadron rolled into Red Square, it was obvious that a new Russia was in the making. A Darylist state was born. St. Petersburg was renamed Somersgrad, Tsaritsyn was later named Pluckagrad (after Plucka Duck’s heroic struggle against a flock of pidgeons in the city centre).


Daryl Somers was no fool. He saw that there was a chance of expansion in Western Europe. After 10 minutes of bartering with Western powers, the main countries of the European Union were bought for eleven devaluated Euro dollars (Ireland was sold for scrap iron, Sweden was told to relocate to Greenland).


Now, this new Somers bloc was named the U.S.S.S. (the Union of Somers’ Saturday Satellites). The U.S.S.S. based its principles on the ideals of Darylism. Darylism, a doctrine that all property and means of production should be used to create Hey, Hey It’s Saturday merchandise.


A new political system was formed for the U.S.S.S., the governing body was a central committee consisting of Red Symons, Plucka Duck and Boris Yeltsin. This trio formed a core for the Darylburo, the new Russia parliament. The Darylburo introduced an ambitious plan for U.S.S.S. economic development, the 20 Minute Plan. In the first Twenty Minute Plan all sectors of production experienced huge increases. Pluck Duck novelty condom production increased by 1/4% and Jo-Beth Taylor novelty print toilet roll production increased thirty-fold (this was due to an extensive advertising campaign that involved the jingle, “Yes! You too can wipe your arse on that bitch’s face!”)


There was only one opponent to Darylism, America. A series of U.S. presidents had declared the U.S.S.S. an “Evil aspirant to world domination and an interfering force against the American televisual schedule.” In August 1996 (just before the new fall schedule), America felt the first wave of Darylist propaganda. With the latest technology, the S.G.B. (Somers’ Garish Brigade), infiltrated U.S. broadcasting stations. The North American continent was then subjected to continuos broadcasts of episodes of Hey, Hey It’s Saturday from 25th September 1979. This continued for 3 days. Riots were widespread. The U.S. military blamed it on a Canadian conspiracy and duly burned the country to the ground.


After this incident, following a new Darylist revolution, the Cuban Garden Gnome Crisis occurred. The new Cuban Darylist government began the production of garden gnomes bearing the likeness of Daryl Somers. As these gnomes found their way onto the American mainland, the U.S. government threatened the U.S.S.S. with a garden gnome trade war. After much procrastination, the Darylburo ordered the Cuban leader, John Howard (3rd cousin of Australian Prime Minister, John Howard) to change the likeness of the gnomes to that of Molly Meldrum. This did little to improve U.S. - U.S.S.S. relations.


A new cold war began.


It would last nearly 3 years.


In July 1999, the U.S. government was so concerned about S.G.B. spies learning that U.S. President, Bill Clinton, was in fact a heathen hermaphrodite with an I.Q. of 2, that they set up a task force dedicated to destroying Darylism and the U.S.S.S.. This force was named Bert Force, after its commander-in-chief, Bert Newton.


Bert Force was a tight unit, consisting of 12 men cloned from a single cell containing the D.N.A. of Don Lane. Each Don was equipped with the latest copy of ‘Don Lane’s greatest quips’ and a variety of devastating Groucho Marx impressions. Once the U.S.S.S. was aware of Bert Forces’ existence, it formed its own squad of trained killers, Charlton Force, named after its General, Charlton Heston (a secret Darylist sympathiser). Charlton Force contained 12 clones of Red Symons. Each was armed with a Kazoo and they were trained to engage the enemy with renditions of Skyhook’s ‘greatest hits’. The scene was set for a terrifying confrontation.


On July 14th, Bert Force stormed the Kremlin. In the broom cupboard, Boris Yeltsin had just sat down with Daryl Somers and was enjoying a vodka tinged coffee with gin and tonic soaked digestive biscuits when a Don clone burst through the door.


An epic battle was fought in the broom cupboard. Boris won. After the Don clone had initially wounded Boris with a petrifying Groucho Marx impression, Boris had retaliated by breathing in the Don clone’s face. The stench of vodka overloaded the Don clone’s nasal passage and his head subsequently melted.


Across the corridor, in the womens toilets, Forces’ Bert and Charlton were battling to the death. Due to an N.R.A. meeting, Charlton Heston could not lead his force against the threat of Bert Force. So, after much Kazoo playing, the Red Symons clones were defeated due to a general lack of composing skills.


Bert Newton now led his force into the broom cupboard. There, amongst the musty smell of mouldy dish rags, Bert Newton and Boris Yeltsin engaged in a dramatic drunken battle of epic proportions. Boris, armed with his vodka breath, was faced with the monster that was Bert Newton, who was armed with his equally potent, bourbon breath. After a battle that saw the paint melt off the walls, Boris was forced out of a third storey window by a particularly noxious gust of Bert breath. Boris survived. Due to his fall, he was paralysed from the neck upwards. This actually resulted in a more coherent Boris Yeltsin. He formed a multi national company after the war, Boriska, a vodka bottling company.


Bert, who was mortally wounded due to his battle with Boris, struggled against Daryl Somers, but was no match for Somers after he had to endure one of Daryl’s 20 minute drum solos. After the war, Bert was obviously dead. During his autopsy, it was discovered that Bert’s lungs had completely disintegrated.


Daryl now assumed that he had won. Bert was dead. The Don Lane clones had died from excessive quip syndrome. There was no opposition in sight.


It was at this point (not without a sniff of derision from the writer) that Jean-Luc Picard of the starship “I’m Bald Because I Sniff Glue” imploded into the scene (much to the amazement of all involved).


Jean-Luc declared that he had come to save the day. Daryl responded by chuckling quietly to himself. Little did Daryl know that Jean-Luc had his own secret weapon. Jean-Luc performed a version of ‘(I Can’t Get No) Satisfaction’ in Shakespearean English, accompanied by his pregnant wife, John Farnham, on harmonies. This was too much for Daryl to take, he grasped a nearby bottle of Boris’ vodka and took one small sip. He died instantly. Later, after it was analysed by U.S. scientists, the vodka was discovered to be more lethal than VX nerve gas. The U.S. military instantly denied that they were involved in chemical weapons production. Two weeks later it was discovered that the entire population of Alabama had each grown a second head.


Nobody noticed.


After destroying Daryl Somers, Jean-Luc and his new bride exploded out of the scene. They went on to complete their honeymoon in Outer Mongolia.


Once the U.S. - U.S.S.S. war of July 14th was over, it was discovered that Daryl Somers was merely a cover for the true mastermind of Darylism, Plucka Duck.


On July 16th, Plucka Duck made a broadcast from his holiday home in Lebanon announcing that he would personally ensure that the world would be rid of American Imperialism once and for all. Luckily no-one knew what the hell he was talking about and he was ignored for the rest of his revolutionary life, which ended after he died on the night of May 1st 2003 after a heavy cocaine binge.


Meanwhile...


In alternate universe No. 341, Bill Clinton was receiving a blow job from Robert De Niro in the Oval Office. Just as Bill screamed, “Give it to me Bobby!”, his new wife, Al Gore, stormed into the room followed by the corpse of Richard Nixon who was conducting an orchestra playing “She’ll Be Coming ‘Round The Mountain.”

Chapter Five: And His Name Is Richard Wilkins


Suddenly, the door burst open and in walked his wife, Al Gore, humming “I am woman, hear me roar.” Al, upon seeing what was taking place on the same desk that JFK had once called his own, began to cry. Then, as a stunned silence fell on the occupants of the room, in walked the corpse of former US President Richard Nixon, who was conducting an orchestra playing “She’ll Be Coming ‘Round The Mountain.” After a minute, Bill found it impossible to distinguish between Al Gore and the corpse of Richard Nixon.


Robert De Niro promptly fastened his pants and walked quietly out of the room.


Bill attempted to address his crying wife, but was still unable to determine any difference between the two men standing in his office. He decided he’d try something, “Communists!” he said.


“Kill ‘em alllllllllllllllll..............................!” cried Richard Nixon.


Bill, now knowing who was who, tried to appease his wife, “I had a hard childhood,” he said.


“OK,” said Al Gore, and stopped crying.


Just then, they heard a melody coming from somewhere.


“NO!!” screamed Bill Clinton.


“Somebody save me!” cried Al Gore, and leapt into the arms of Bill.


But no, there was no saving them, it was the theme tune to “Entertainment Tonight: The Australian Edition.”


Deciding that death was their only option, they both shot themselves.


“Welcome to Entertainment Tonight, I’m Richard Wilkins!” said Richard Wilkins.


“And I’m the cute teenage girl that sits next to Richard Wilkins to attract the 15-21 male demographic to this otherwise shitawful show,” said teenage girl.


[Knowing that nobody deserves that, the contents of ET have been omitted].


After the show, Richard Wilkins was making his way out of the studio to his stretch limousine. The short distance from the studio door to his waiting car was about twenty metres, and was crammed with literally hundreds of poor, stupid, teenage girls.


“We love you Richard,” said the teenage girls.


“Don’t touch the hair!” said Richard Wilkins.


“We love you Richard,” said the vocabulary challenged teenage girls.


“Yeah, I know,” said Richard Wilkins.


Alan, one of the Channel Nine security guards, asked one of the teenage girls what Richard Wilkins was famous for.


“Ummmmmm.........................,” said the teenage girl, and died from cerebral overload.


When Richard Wilkins got home, he took off his Armani suit and put on his Superman costume. He then slid down the Batpole into the Batcave and sat in his control chair monitoring his plan for world domination.


“Ha, Ha, Ha!” rejoiced Richard Wilkins.


Suddenly, Richard Wilkins heard the strains of “You’re The Voice” coming from his garage. He opened the door and saw John Farnham, holding Captain Jean-Luc Picard of the Starship “William Shakespeare”, and serenading his new born baby, Darth Vader.


“G’Day mate, ha, ha!” said John Farnham, “we just materialised in from an alternate universe.”


“No worries John,” said Richard Wilkins, and closed the garage door again.


Richard Wilkins went back to his control chair and for a second he thought he saw Kerri-Anne Kennerly, with Ray Martin on her lap, flying through the air over New York City on one of his Batscreens.


“Shit hey!” said Richard Wilkins, then dismissed the vision from his mind.


Richard Wilkins went back to monitoring his plan for world domination. As he sat in his control chair, laughing sardonically at random intervals and losing facial control, Brian Henderson walked in.


“Hello Richard Wilkins,” said Brian Henderson.


“Hello Brian Henderson,” said Richard Wilkins.


Then, as their eyes met, realisation hit them both, and a momentous battle of good and evil ensued.


Richard Wilkins, in the red corner, representing Lucifer, the Seventh Angel, and the inhabitants of Hell; and Brian Henderson, in the blue corner, a childhood friend of Jesus Christ, representing Good, God, and all those in Heaven.


Richard Wilkins opened with a videotape of the debut episode of Entertainment Tonight: The Australian Edition. He then followed up with a clip of him as “Richard Wild” performing a New Zealand hit from the eighties.


Down, but definitely not out, Brian Henderson responded with a feature length edition of Bandstand featuring the Bee Gees; followed in with a tape of some witty banter with Alan Wilke from that night’s National Nine News, consisting of: “So, Brian, looks like rain.”


“Better get the washing in then Alan?”


“Yes.”


Then went for the kill shot with “The very best of the ‘Human Interest’ stories from National Nine News.”


Richard Wilkins, unable to survive the massive onslaught of good, severely exploded.


Brian Henderson smiled, turned to the camera, and said “The way it is, goodnight.”


Meanwhile, in the distance were heard two words. It wasn’t actually hearing them,  more like feeling them: ‘yeah man’...................

Chapter Six: Yeah man, yeah?


The howling wind blew fiercely, whipping the crisp, hard snow into a stinging hail that came from all directions, and no direction; and felt like piercing grains of sand as it came into its grating contact with human flesh. But Greg did not feel any pain, the sanctimonious blizzard was irrelevant to his existence; the chilling harshness of below zero temperatures inapplicable to his reality. Here, away from the material distractions of a so-called actuality, one could truly contemplate and understand the incomprehensible nature of things. Until...


“Hey Greg, man, it’s pretty fuckin’ cold up here man, ya know?”


From his levitated, cross-legged disposition, Greg opened one eye and impetuously regarded his companion, he was growing slowly impatient with his sidekick, “Grasshopper,” he said, “I have told you before, corporeal labels have no relevance to our existence. If you insist on maintaining such a crude form of communication as is language, you must refer to me by my celestial appellation.”


“What’s that?” asked Grasshopper.


“Jesus Christ,” replied Greg.


“Oh, shit ay,” continued Grasshopper, “well anyway, Jesus Christ, do ya think we could, like, go, man?”


“Grasshopper, mere temperatures in one physical existence do not effect our transient being with the cosmos, yeah?”


“Oh, yeah... Shit ay!”


Greg closed his eye and went back to his extrasensory conversation with Mahatma Ghandi.


“I was just saying that George Foreman was a much better fighter in his prime than Humphrey Bear,” said Ghandi.


“Yeah man,” said Greg.


“And don’t ever let anyone tell you that Raquelle Welsh was a better root than Jennifer from Friends,” said Ghandi.


“Yeah man,” said Greg.


“’Cause let me tell you she’s pretty fucking good!” said Ghandi.


“Yeah...,” said Greg.


“Greg, ahh... Jesus Christ man,” interrupted Grasshopper, “it’s fuckin’ cold man.”


“Ahhh...,” sighed Greg at his young friend as he levitated down to the snow, “let us go then”.


And so together, in their white singlets and Bonds boxer shorts, Greg and Grasshopper, or Justin as he had once been called, walked from the summit and down the East face of K2.


As they slowly descended, Greg produced his acid, loaded it into his tobacco pipe, and lit it up, unfortunately, because they were 20,000 feet up, it stubbornly refused to burn. So, never deterred by a difficult situation, Greg simply inserted it into his ear. “Yeah man,” said Greg, sufficiently satisfied.


Meanwhile, Grasshopper Justin, also known as Guru, removed his bottle of Jack Daniel’s, smashed it over his head, and began to eat the shards of glass. “Shit ay man, ya know,” remarked Guru.


As they walked from the base of the mountain, and into mobile phone range, Greg’s transdimensional interuniversal Nokia 1510 vibrated. “I can feel that someone wishes to confabulate their macrocosmic vibes man,” said Greg as he withdrew the phone from where it existed four feet above his left ear. Greg knew what the phone was telling him man, he could sense it, he could feel it, and he had Telstra Calling Number Display just in case. His message service informed him that Arnold “Whispering Ant” Schwarzaneger was in need of the divine services that only he, Jesus Christ, could provide as they existed in this irrelevant materiality. “Come Grasshopper,” said Greg, “we are needed.”


“I’m just gonna take the bus man,” said Guru. This was a stupid statement. The Guru made a lot of stupid statements. This was pure Guru.


“Grasshopper,” said Greg, “ there is no bus on K2.”


“Shit ay!” remarked Guru.


Greg knew where to find Whispering Ant, Greg knew all. Greg reached out and removed his flying carpet from where it resided just outside this plane of existence, somewhere near Texas. “Come along Grasshopper,” he said. So, together, they flew to see Arnold.


Arnold “Whispering Ant” Schwarzaneger was in a disused wheat silo in Katmandu where he was filming his latest blockbuster “The Sound of Music II: This Time it’s Personal” and was currently being besieged by nomadic yak herders who were disgruntled due to Arnold’s steroid induced yak gangbang of the previous night.


The Nepalese yak herders, having grown up with the Great Western Cable Network (the only 24 hour satellite television network available in Nepal) had lost their native tongue and developed an aptitude for John Wayne impressions. This made negotiations between Arnold and said yak herders quite difficult.


“Well pilgrim, I guess we’re coming to the end of our tether, how’s about a last lick of fine grade malt whiskey?” said the leader of the Nepalese Yak Herders’ Federation, or NYHF as it was called (which had itself caused a decades long dispute with the New York Handicapped Federation).


“Asta la vista, baby,” responded Arnold as he lifted his M1-A1 Abrams battle tank onto his shoulder.


While dodging numerous shell bursts the yak herders responded with a full blown nuclear strike (localised to the wheat silo). Unfortunately for the NYHF, and the global cinema audience, Arnold suffered only minor abrasions.


Greg’s inner speedometer showed their speed to be just over 3000 parsecs per eon just before Guru began to urinate over the side of the flying carpet and right on Jiang Zemin who was walking back from Moscow via New Delhi (in order to pick up some popadums for breakfast); this in turn threw the flying carpet off balance and sent it into a spiralling death dive which landed them in a snowdrift in Sudan. After plummeting 150,000 feet they miraculously survived.


“Shit ay,” said Guru.


“Yeah!?” answered Greg.


“Where the fuck are we man,” asked Guru.


Greg was at loss to explain where they were, his trans-dimensional locator had been thrown out of sync in the 2000 kilometre an hour crash. He had no idea what to do, where to go. Greg sat down and crossed his legs, removed a syringe full of cocaine from an alternate existence, found a vain, and injected it into his forehead. “Yeah man,” he said.


Hours later, after having hiked through the dense rainforest of Sudan and negotiating several fast flowing crocodile infested rivers, which were being fed by the now thawing expansive sub-Saharan snow fields, Greg and Guru were thirsty, tired and entirely lost. “My inter-creational, telepathic, seven-dimensional compass is malfunctioning man,” said Greg.


“Shit ay,” said Guru.


Just as all seemed lost, as all hope seemed to have dissipated, as it seemed that Arnold Schwarzaneger would be left to deal with the Nepalese Yak Herders alone, as Greg and Guru sat and waited only to die, Captain Jean Luc Picard of the Starship What a coincidence imploded into the scene. “I am Captain Jean Luc Picard of the Starship What a coincidence,” said Jean Luc. “Have no fear, I will guide you to the wheat silo in Katmandu.”


“I knew you would come,” said Greg.


“Hey man, how’s it hangin’?” said Guru.


“Fine, thankyou,” responded Jean Luc.


“Hey guys,” said Charlie Sheen.


“Who said that man?” asked Guru.


“It is I, Charlie Sheen,” said Charlie Sheen.


“It is Charlie Sheen man,” said Greg.


“I have come to see you Maharishi,” said Charlie Sheen to Guru.


“What?” said Guru.


“I need guidance man, I need to find the path; I give myself to you man, I am yours, do whatever you wish with me.”


“What?” said Guru.


“I give you my life man, do with me what you must.”


“What?” said Guru.


“No man, I am the ubiquitous omnipresent presence here man! You have come to me!” said Greg.


“Fuck off little man,” said Charlie Sheen.


“I am the cosmic empyrean totality man, not him!” said Greg, pointing at Guru and becoming visibly agitated.


“I told you to fuck off, now fuck off,” said Charlie Sheen.


Greg, now extremely distressed, reached out to the universe to unleash its wrath on Charlie Sheen. “I will pour down thunder on your soul and take your creational shadow and with it throw unto you a hammer which will impact on your forehead in turn forming an occult which will crush your anima, sending your spirit into a dark place from which will occur a great entity which will invalidate your essence and dissolve your spiritual being with it ending your breath of life!”


“What the fuck?” said Charlie Sheen.


“Yeah man...,” said Guru.


Nothing happened. But it didn’t matter because Charlie Sheen collapsed from a cocaine overdose while he was waiting for the universe to annihilate his soul.


Jean Luc shrugged.


The trio continued heading towards Nepal. A little while later they came across a dead body. “Look,” said Greg, “a dead German tourist!” Greg immediately began to mug the dead body. “Ha ha,” he said, looking up, satisfied, “I have found ten thousand dollars and some drugs, yeah man.” Greg then removed the dead man’s clothes. “I will use this money and sell these drugs to travel around South America!”


Captain Jean Luc Picard of the Starship What a coincidence looked on bemused.


“Ha ha, I have found you darling!” said John Farnham as he emerged from the dense bush, carrying a set of bagpipes. He played a couple of bars of Amazing Grace. “I am John Farnham,” said John Farnham.


“I know,” said Greg.


John Farnham blushed, “well, it’s uplifting to have so many fans, I was just say...”


“No!” said Greg, “I know who you are because I am an empyrean metaphysical transcendental prescient!”


“Ha ha, what ever you reckon mate,” said John Farnham.


“Ahhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh................,” screamed Greg, and began pulling out his hair.


“I thought I told you not to contact me here,” said Jean Luc sternly.


“I am sorry darling!” said John Farnham, and played You are so beautiful right through.


“I forgive you,” said Jean Luc.


Jean Luc and John Farnham shared a long kiss. Then John went back to New Hampshire to take care of Darth, and Jean Luc continued towards Katmandu.


In no time at all they had reached the abandoned wheat silo in Katmandu where Arnold “Whispering Ant” Schwarzaneger was in a pitched battle with the Nepalese Yak Herders’ Federation. Jean Luc left for New Hampshire. “Have no fear Whispering Ant,” said Greg, “I am here now, you are safe, my omnipresent friend!”


Arnold, having just lifted a Patriot missile battery onto his shoulder, looked around, “I will destroy these diminutive yak herders,” said Arnold, and launched a missile. The yak herders responded by unleashing a mirror on Arnold. Upon seeing his own reflection Arnold dropped his considerable arsenal and began touching up his hair, “oh yes,” he said, “I am quite beautiful, aren’t I?” The yak herders took advantage of this momentary distraction and began an attack.


“No man!” said Greg, “we must come together as one man and resolve ourselves with nature and the universe man. The mystic oracle will find ourselves within ourselves man!”


“Shit yeah!” said Guru.


“It’s OK,” said Arnold as he regained his composure, “I have my lucky bumper sticker!” Arnold turned and revealed the sticker which had been given to him by Greg and which he had stuck on the back of his stealth bomber: ‘MYSTICS DO IT WITH THEIR LEFT HAND MAN!’


Greg waved to Arnold, “yeah man.”


Just then, as Arnold seemed to be in trouble, the New York Handicapped Federation arrived, slowly. “We are the true NYHF! You bastards!” One young man in a wheelchair fired an arrow at the Nepalese Yak Herders’ Federation.


Arnold took this opportunity and began a solo ‘pose off’. The Nepalese immediately retreated.


Greg, fed up with this pseudoexistance, left the continuum, leaving Guru who shrugged and went to find a nightclub. Arnold Schwarzaneger went to find a yak.


It was there, it was all around them, “yeah man.”

Chapter Seven: Star Trek X: The End

Starring in order of appearance:

Jean Luc Picard

John Farnham

Van Morrison

Lord Fothrington

Luciano Pavarotti

Marlon Brando

Sammy Davis Jr.

Commander Riker

Groucho (Marx) Nostradamus Picard

Data

Cliff Richard

Worf

Tom Jones

Elvis Presley

Richard Burton

Debbie Reynolds

Spock

Pauline Hanson

Derryn Hinch

Boris Yeltsin

Josef Stalin

  ...and featuring the talents of The Ray Martin All Star Band:

Ray Martin

Red Symons

Kerry-Anne Kennerley a.k.a. Dominatrix

Bert Newton

Daryl Somers

Bob Marley’s corpse (played by Eddie Murphy)

Introducing the corpse of Richard Nixon as Spock’s battle underpants.


As he came to his climax, Jean Luc Picard gazed adoringly into the eyes of his wife, John Farnham, and realised he was the baldest man in the room. Four days later John finally stopped making love to his husband, and after wiping his thighs, went to the mini bar to fix himself a Pina Colada.


“Where are the little umbrellas, darling?” breathed John.


“Next to the coke, honey,” purred Jean Luc.


John looked at the white powder, which was now in a pile three feet high, and elected to plunge his face into it. He took a long snort and rocked back on his heels.


“Man! That’s good shit!” John whispered.


“Baby, come over here. I’ve got something to show you,” teased Jean Luc. John shimmered over to the round, revolving bed that he and Jean Luc had bought from “Lover’s Nest” while on leave in Gamma Quadrant.


“Yeah?” oozed John.


“Check this out,” said Jean Luc as he proceeded to spin his nipples 360 degrees.


John laughed freely. He felt like a young schoolgirl on the verge of puberty. Life was good for John and Jean Luc, and especially for their six month old son, Groucho. But somewhere a man was hatching a plot to change all of this. A man with no bounds to which normal people follow. A man whose hideousness was matched only by his girth.


Van Morrison was taking his third daily nap upon his throne of discarded pastry crusts when the International Ministerial Phoneline (or Imp) buzzed into life. The Van moaned something audible only to dogs and highland sheep before rolling off the throne and over to the phone, while still asleep.


“UrrUmAumParumph,” said The Van.


“Ah, Van, you’re awake,” replied Lord Fothrington.


“Approrrpra unhjkl tilpach,” crooned The Van.


“This message will self-destruct in two weeks. So I’ll be brief. Your mission Van, should you choose to accept it, is to shadow a former operative now residing in Naples. His Imp codename was Derek. You will know him as... Pavarotti. He is linked to several Mafioso, but we want him in connection with a plot to kill Jean Luc Picard of Star Trek and Deep Throat 9 fame. If you should be captured, Imp will deny all knowledge and release your Greatest Hits: “Where Did All The Pies Go?” volumes One through Ten. Good luck Van.” Lord Fothrington ended with a flourish by exploding.


“aroutrehagh...Shite! It’s 20% off at Jimmy’s pies tonight!” wailed The Van.


Meanwhile, somewhere in Naples...


Luciano Pavarotti was sitting at the controls of his star-freighter, “Big Bertha”, attempting to reassess the diagnostics of the Tri-Space confibulator.


Due to his command performance at the newly opened “All New Hanging Gardens of Babylon” the night before, Pavarotti had to conserve his voice. He did this by communicating through Telepathy.


He beckoned his Number Two, Marlon Brando, by thinking, “Marlon my little Honeypot. Come to me.”


Eighteen months later Brando completed his journey from the adjoining room. He was almost drowning in his own sweat. He was dressed in a blue tutu and was using Sammy Davis Jr. as a crutch.


“Marlon, could you get me a coke from downstairs?” enquired Pavarotti.


The round trip would have taken Brando eighteen years if he had not spontaneously combusted. The blast was heard over 300 light years away by John Farnham, who was ironing his husband’s peephole bra at the time. When Sammy was found three days later, under the remains of one of Brando’s armpits, Pavarotti promoted him to Number Two.


“This is a sad day Sammy. Marlon was a man cut down in his prime. Too many die young Sammy,” thought Pavarotti.


“I know. I died over ten years ago, man. That cat Marl, he was a crazy swinger man. He really knew how to trip the light fantastic,” enthused Sammy.


“Sammy,” Pavarotti imagined, “no more pseudo jivetalk.”


Jean Luc swooshed onto the Bridge while still tucking in his tunic. Number Two gave an almost audible smirk to the rest of the crew. It was common knowledge Jean Luc had had rosy cheeks since that first night in “The Bondage Suite” in the Holiday Inn on Mars’ newly discovered moon, Somera (named after the 20th Century Russian dictator, Daryl Somers).


“Welcome home Captain. I expect that you’re worn out from your leave,” joked Riker.


“Whatever can you mean Number Two?” enquired Jean Luc.


(In a distant universe, in a distant dimension, someone is vomiting at such corny humour)


While Riker and Picard engaged in advanced foreplay, young Groucho had secretly entered. Groucho was not an ancestor of the famed Marx as you may have thought but was in fact in possession of prophetic powers similar to those of Nostradamus. He slinked into the corner and crouched beneath the Spam vending machine, in the corner, next to Spock’s framed battle underpants.


“Anything to report, Number Two?” asked Jean Luc.


“Not really Captain. Although there was a problem with the condom vending machine on level 329, but I soon fixed that, ha, ha,” replied Riker.


“Number Two, you really should get out more often.”


“I know, if I don’t get my leg over soon I’m going to go blind!”


“Riker, I’m going to be frank with you. I’ve never liked you. In fact I’ve often prayed for a painful death when talking to you.”


“Captain, I don’t know what to say! I thought we had something special!”


“Of course you did Riker, you raving poof!”


“Oh Jean! You’ve never been the same since you shacked up with that harlot!” cried Riker.


“How dare you talk about my Little Red Robbin in such a way!” screamed an enraged Jean Luc.


Just as this saga threatened to turn into a homoerotic slanging match, that last bastion of human spirit, Data, interrupted.


“Please, if everyone could just give me a moment of their time, I have a very important announcement to make. As most of you know, I have been trying to understand the human psyche for many years. I can now tell you that I can fully comprehend your emotion of love. I have found a soul mate. In fact, I have a fiancee... I would like you all to meet... Cliff Richard. My future wife.” Data was now crying in joy.


The chain of command was now in tatters. Every officer in the room was involved in the debate over whether the Captain was the cause of the raging promiscuity now occurring upon Enterprise. Phasers were drawn and shots were fired. Riker was mortally wounded after being hit in the testicles eighteen times, by six different people. Worf became pissed by all the noise and subsequently dismembered Data. Cliff became slightly upset by this, and went off to the corner for a cry. Data tried to follow, but his attempts made him look like a suffocating haddock. He eventually gave up and shut himself down.


From his vantage point, young Groucho smiled in appreciation. He reached into his pocket and pulled out a miniature Tom Jones figurine.


“It’s all going to plan, boyo,” declared Tom.


“Yes Tom, we must go now,” announced Groucho.


No-one noticed Groucho and the Tom Jones figurine hovering out of the Bridge.


And Groucho and Tom Jones didn’t notice Spock’s battle underpants release a small probe. The probe hurried after the two, leaving behind a struggle that resembled the First Zulu War.


Meanwhile...


3:15p.m. Russian Consulate, Zagreb.


Elvis Presley snuck past the guard’s desk while the guard tuned out to ‘White Rabbit’. As Elvis waited for the elevator he realised that he knew the guard. It was none other than... Richard Burton.


“Hey Dick! How’re you going?” asked Elvis.


There was no reply from Dick as he was trying to climb up the walls. The elevator was now ready. Elvis took one last look at Dick and shook his head.


“He should never have married Liz that second time” muttered Elvis as he entered the high speed elevator and pressed Ground Floor.

*****

4:40p.m. M.G.M. Grand, Las Vegas.


While Debbie Reynolds was belting out that old chestnut, “I’m Old, I’m Tired, And I’m Smashed”, a dark figure was crossing the rear of the main ballroom. The shadowy fiend passed through the backstage security with ease, a T-bone steak was placed upon the floor for the guards to devour. The intruder headed for Ms. Reynolds’ dressing room. Upon entering, a package was placed on the dressing table by the mystery visitor. It was a small pink box...


Back on Enterprise order had been partially restored. Only a few scorched body parts remained for the ship cleaner to remove, and the only member of the crew unaccounted for was Worf, who was last seen jettisoning several of Data’s body parts on level 41 while whistling the Hail Mary through his anus.


On the Bridge Jean Luc was sobbing heavily into John’s ample bosom. He was ravaged by guilt over Riker’s gruesome death.


“It should have been me, Johnny!” cried Jean Luc.


“There, there. Come now my little petal. He would have wanted you to be strong at a time like this,” replied John.


“You’re right, my angel,” whispered Jean Luc.


Picard now hurried away. He would go the gym everyday, and he would be as strong as he could. He left Spock’s battle underpants in command. The briefs sat in the Captain’s chair and motioned through sign language to increase speed to Wipe factor Ten. A crewman duly arrived with a six pack of two ply toilet tissue.


‘WIPE ME HARD, BIG BOY!!!’ Spock’s battle underpants motioned.


Meanwhile, back in Naples...


“Launch will commence in T-minus 10 days,” declared a hired goon in mission control.


“Have you ever co-piloted a Class A Star Freighter, Sammy?” invoked Pavarotti.


“Hey man, I can fly any crate you give me, you crazy cat!” jived Sammy.


“Launch will commence in T-minus now,” said a hired goon.


The ship (which was roughly the size of Mexico) thundered out of Pavarotti’s secret lair, which was disguised as his garden shed. The blast from the launch wiped Naples off the face of the Earth. No-one really cared.


The ship quickly passed the stratosphere, but was bogged down when it encountered a wall of News Corp. satellites. Sammy fired a round of caps from his toy Luger and annihilated the obstacle. This effectively ended Fox’s broadcast of Jerry Springer, indefinitely. Southern America experienced its worst riots ever. Trailer park trash with nothing better to do went on a rampage. Over 300 K.F.C. stores were looted, and Hot Dog stands were burnt to the ground.


“Big Bertha” headed out to the outer edges of our known universe and left behind a path of destruction that would soon pale in comparison.


The Van was sitting in an armchair attached to the wing of a Biplane eating a roast hippo. Due to his overwhelming size the plane was balanced out by a frozen Woolly Mammoth strapped to the opposite wing.


“Agent Enormous (as The Van was known within Imp), we’re about to leave breathable air space. It’s time to suit up,” the pilot shouted over the whine of the engine.


“AAAdfsgjfgc nhfjmk kdhfk...shite. I’m eating. hfuojg k(burp) jhy(warble),” The Van shouted.


The Van’s space helmet consisted of the water tank that used to house Keiko the whale. His space suit consisted of a protective, natural body layer. Or, his fat. The vacuum of space could not compete with such lard based protection.


The Biplane, “Indescribable”, slowly climbed out of Earth’s atmosphere and used the path that had been cleared by “Big Bertha” fifteen seconds earlier.


The pilot set the co-ordinates and engaged “Indescribable’s” light-speed drive. The little plane vanished from sight, leaving behind a noxious green gas cloud. The shock of light-speed travel had caused The Van to release his pent up methane deposit that he’d been building up since 1967.


4:43p.m. M.G.M. Grand, Las Vegas.


Elvis Presley removed his ski mask and released a devilish laugh. He typed a codeword into his watch and stood to attention as Groucho Picard came into view...


Spock’s battle underpants’ mini probe had settled upon the head of Groucho’s waxwork Bette Midler. Across the room Tom Jones was changing Groucho’s nappy, despite being only two inches high.


The probe peered curiously at Tom’s deft nappy work and relayed the information back to Spock himself, who, after dying 85 years ago, had been embalmed and was currently on show at the Las Vegas franchise of the Hard Rock Cafe. Spock was deeply troubled by these developments. He realised that he would have to bring himself back to life in order to halt Groucho’s dastardly plot. He sent a message back to his battle underpants and then resumed being dead.


Spock’s battle underpants received his instructions and opened up communication with Earth...


In a shack, somewhere in Queensland. Tuesday.


The Ray Martin All Star Band was three weeks into an impromptu jam of George Michael’s “I Want Your Sex” when Red Symons’ intergalactic communicator purred into life. Due to the size of the band, Symons didn’t believe his kazoo playing would be missed. He went over to the communicator which was cunningly disguised as an eight inch long black dildo. He licked the tip of the communicator in order to use his saliva as a password. After analysing Red’s saliva, the dildo morphed into a 160 inch rear projection two-way communication screen. After a second, Spock’s battle underpants came into view.


“Mein Fuhrer!” Symons barked as he clicked his heels.


Spock’s battle underpants proceeded to hold up several placards that informed Red what he and his comrades were needed for. At the end of this silent monologue Symons sighed. It was a one way mission, certain death.


“Oh well,” Symons said, “I have a colon inspection tomorrow, but nothing else on the horizon.”


Spock’s battle underpants faded from view, and the screen morphed into a popcorn machine.


Symons ambled back to the stage to see Ray Martin exposing himself to the audience. This started a brawl that would last some three years, in which time Pauline Hanson would be glassed for calling Bert Newton “A fat drunken bastard”. Once the brawl was over the band retired to their motorhome - a flying, leather trim Volkswagen Combi. Symons informed the band of their imminent suicide mission. Those present were: Ray Martin (vocals, pitching fork), Kerry Anne Kennerly (bass, bondage), Red Symons (kazoo, bass), Bert Newton (saxophone, Jack Daniel’s), Daryl Somers (drums, drums), Bob Marley’s corpse (steel drums, iron lung).


“Right then, let’s suit up and kick some ass!” screamed Bert, as he headbutted a brick wall to emphasise his point.


So, Alpha Omega (as The Ray Martin All Star Band was known in some circles) went to the nearest corner shop, and being in Queensland, were able to purchase a few Plasma rifles and high velocity Rocket Launchers. They had to go to the hardware store to purchase a tactical nuclear missile.


Alpha Omega loaded the Combi, which was now christened “HMAS Shitbox” and engaged the Warp Drive that they’d bought from some bloke in the pub. They were destined for Las Vegas...


Debbie Reynolds had just finished a 48 hour stint in the main ballroom and was heading for her dressing room when she was intercepted by Alpha Omega, who bundled her into the cleaner’s closet.


“Ms. Reynolds, my name is Red Symons and I am the Commander of the most deadly intergalactic strike force in the universe, Alpha Omega. I have been ordered to take you to the Hard Rock Cafe for a mission of utmost importance,” barked Red.


“I will do no such thing! Unhand me you brute!” screamed Reynolds.


“Ms. Reynolds, Mr. Spock demands your attendance at the Hard Rock Cafe within the hour,” insisted Red.


“Ooohh... Spock. Why didn’t you say so? Give me a minute, I need to change my wig,” Reynolds squeaked.


So Reynolds and Alpha Omega went to the vast dressing room that housed millions of Reynolds’ wigs. Once they were all inside, the door dramatically swung shut. Bert rushed over and tried to open it. It was locked. It was at this drama fuelled juncture that Reynolds noticed the pink box resting on her dressing table...


“Big Bertha” came to a halt nearly two metres away from the Enterprise. Pavarotti then executed a near perfect three point turn, while eating a pastrami sandwich.


“Fire at will!!!” thought Pavarotti.


Spock’s battle underpants gave the order to raise shields, but it was too late. The Enterprise was struck by a volley of caps, fired by Sammy Davis Jr. with his toy Luger. The Enterprise took a direct hit up her arse, causing a severe rash and resulting in an inflamed rectum. The blasts caused the destruction of the onboard Macdonald’s, which destroyed morale and left the Enterprise crippled. Jean Luc and John died in each others arms while having anal sex in a space suit on the outside of the ship. Spock’s battle underpants were set alight by flying sparks and suffered third degree burns to over 90% of the crotch area. The Tom Jones figurine melted after someone spilt some very hot coffee on him, his last words were, “Cymru Forever, boyo!” Groucho was crushed to death by the ship’s whole supply of egg mayonnaise. His prophetic powers had failed him as he was taking a nap. Before he finally succumb to the perils of salad dressing, he gave the order to initiate Operation Fungi. His right hand man, Elvis Presley was entrusted to complete the plan.


Three seconds after Groucho’s death the Enterprise imploded. Leaving only a soggy lettuce behind. Meanwhile...


Debbie Reynolds’ Dressing Room, M.G.M. Grand, Las Vegas. Wednesday.


“Okay, so it’s agreed. We use my head as a battering ram,” declared Bert with great excitement.


“Yes Bert, you ravishing hunk of love,” squealed Kerry Anne as Dominatrix.


Just as Alpha Omega were about to break out to save the universe, Elvis Presley began to sing Heartbreak Hotel from beyond either the mortal coil or the locked door. Probably the latter.


“It’s the King!” cried Derryn Hinch, who had suddenly appeared.


“A-har-har” replied Elvis.


“Elvis, you’ve come to save us?!” shouted Ray.


“Uh, no man. You’re all here to die,” giggled Elvis.


There was stunned silence from within the room, apart from Bert who was having a drunken fight with Boris Yeltsin and Josef Stalin in the corner. They were arguing over who deserved the last nip of anti-freeze, the last alcohol in the room.


“You see, I stole a new Russian weapon yesterday. It will render the whole world as fungi for over a million years (“Yeltsin, hand over that fucking anti-freeze!”), and that weapon is in your room. A-har-har!” spasmed Elvis.


Elvis typed the codeword into his watch. The countdown began at ten seconds...

Elvis: “Elvis has left the building”

Alpha Omega: “Always look on the bright side of life, de dum de dum de dum...”

Debbie Reynolds: “Bert! Take off my stockings!”

Boris Yeltsin: “Get away from me! I’m dangerous when I’m sober!”

Josef Stalin: “Give me the booze, you capitalist swine!”

Bert Newton: “Good Morning Australia...”

bang.


The Earth was now a mushroom.


“It’s life Jim, but not as we know it,” Spock would have remarked if he was alive and if he had not been turned into a pile of moss.


The “Indescribable” reached its destination in good time considering The Van had insisted on making a three hour pit stop so that he could thaw out the Woolly Mammoth and have a barbecue. The crew scanned the area thoroughly, but all that could be found was a soggy lettuce.


“afgfarfagr...Shite. I’m late. hdyadjfkksj h...(rumble)..” said The Van.


“arse... r rff h...Oh well...fdrsg..back to Belfast boys...y dt sg...There’s a cheese festival on tomorrow. jthfjdcmfj jjyjjjhm mjjjjjjuuh..” remarked The Van.


And so ended the Neverending Saga... but not before The Van had the lads pick up that soggy lettuce. He just fancied some salad after six tonnes of Woolly Mammoth....




